
 

 

 

May 2023 

TRS Board of Trustees Meeting 
 

The image part with relationship ID rId8 was not found in the file.

Teacher Retirement System of 
Texas 
1000 Red River Street 
Austin, Texas 
78701-2698 



   
 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 
AGENDA 

 
May 30, 2023 – 10:30 a.m. 

 
 
All or part of the May 30, 2023 meeting of the TRS Board of Trustees may be held by telephone or 
video conference call as authorized under Sections 551.130 and 551.127 of the Texas Government 
Code. The Board intends to have the presiding officer and a quorum physically present at the 
following location, which will be open to the public during the open portions of the meeting: 1000 
Red River, Austin, Texas 78701 in the TRS East Building, 5th Floor, Boardroom.  
 
Members of the public may provide virtual public comment by registering first with the Board 
Secretary by submitting an email to publiccomment@trs.texas.gov identifying the name of the 
speaker and topic, no later than 5:00 pm on May 29, 2023.  
 
The open portions of the Board meeting are being broadcast over the Internet. Access to the 
Internet broadcast and agenda materials of the Board meeting is provided at www.trs.texas.gov. 
A recording of the meeting will be available at www.trs.texas.gov.  
 
NOTE: The Board may take up any item posted on the agenda during its meeting on May 30, 2023 
beginning at the time and place specified on this agenda. 
 

1. Call roll of Board members. 
  

2. Consider the following administrative matters – Jarvis V. Hollingsworth: 
A. Approval of the April 2023 proposed meeting minutes; and 
B. Excusing Trustee’s absences from the April 2023 meeting. 

 
3. Resolution recognizing the service of Trustee Christopher S. Moss – Jarvis V. 

Hollingsworth. 
 

4. Provide an opportunity for public comment – Jarvis V. Hollingsworth. 
 

5. Review and discuss the Executive Director's report on the following matters – Brian 
Guthrie:  

A. Administrative operational matters, including updates on financial, audit, legal, 
staff services, special projects, strategic planning, the 88th Legislative Session 
including bills impacting members and investments, and personnel matters. 

B. Board operational matters, including a review of draft agendas for upcoming 
meetings. 

mailto:publiccomment@trs.texas.gov
http://www.trs.texas.gov/
http://www.trs.texas.gov/


   
 

C. Event notices or reminders; holiday and other schedules of interest; board member, 
employee or other individual recognitions; and expressions of thanks, 
congratulations, or condolences. 

 
6. Receive an update and consider the following related to the TRS health benefits programs 

– Katrina Daniel, Meaghan Bludau and Melanie Ingleby. 
 

A. TRS Active-Care FY2024 Self-funded Rates and Benefits Changes; 
 

B. TRS Active-Care FY2024 Fully insured HMO Rates and Benefits Changes. 
 

7. Review the report of the General Counsel on pending and contemplated 
litigation, including updates on litigation involving benefit-program 
contributions, retirement benefits, health-benefit programs, investment matters 
and open records and on legal or regulatory matters involving certain TRS 
vendors, investment managers, or other counterparties– Heather Traeger and 
J.R. Morgan. 
 

  
The Board may convene in Executive Session under the following, but not limited to:  
  

a. Texas Government Code, Section 551.071: Consultation with Attorney; 
b. Texas Government Code, Section 551.072: Deliberation Regarding Real Property; 
c. Texas Government Code, Section 551.074: Personnel Matters Relating to 

Appointment, Employment, Evaluation, Assignment, Duties, Discipline, or 
Dismissal of Officers or Employees including but not limited to the Executive 
Director, Chief Audit Executive, Chief Investment Officer. 

d. Texas Government Code, Section 551.076: Deliberation Regarding Security 
Devices or Security Audits;  

e. Texas Government Code, Section 551.089: Deliberation Regarding Security 
Devices or Security Audits; or  

f. Texas Government Code, Section 825.115: Applicability of Certain Laws;  
g. Texas Government Code, Section 825.3011: Certain Consultations Concerning 

Investments. 
 
 



1 
 

Minutes of the Board of Trustees 

April 27, 2023  

The Board of Trustees of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas met on Thursday, April 27, 
2023, in the boardroom located on the Fifth Floor in the East Building of TRS’ offices located at 
1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas, 78701.   

The following Board members were present: 
Jarvis V. Hollingsworth, Chair 
Nanette Sissney 
Brittny Allred 
Michael Ball 
John Elliott  
James D. Nance 
Robert H. Walls, Jr. 
Elvis Williams 
 
Others present: 
Brian Guthrie, TRS     Steve Voss, AON  
Andrew Roth, TRS      Michael McCormick, AON 
Heather Traeger, TRS     Suzanne Dugan, Cohen Milstein 
Jase Auby, TRS     Luke Bierman, Cohen Milstein   
Don Green, TRS     Ashley Dunning, Nossaman 
Barbie Pearson, TRS     Ginger Papesh, NNI 
Katrina Daniel, TRS     Hope Berry, UCB 
Amanda Jenami, TRS     Karen Haywood, BCBS 
Katy Hoffman, TRS     Dean Huggler, BCBS 
Eric Lang, TRS     Maggie Irwin, NNI 
Grant Walker, TRS 
Jennifer Wenzel, TRS 
Dale West, TRS 
Wayne Speer, TRS 
J.R. Morgan, TRS 
Katherine Farrell, TRS     
Dr. Keith Brown, Board Investment Advisor   
 
Mr. Hollingsworth called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.  
 

1. Call roll of Board members. 

Ms. Farrell called the roll. A quorum was present, Mr. Corpus was absent. 

2. Consider the following administrative matters: 
a. Approval of the February 2023 proposed meeting minutes; and 

 



2 
 

On a motion by Mr. Nance, seconded by Mr. Williams, the Board unanimously voted to approve 
the February 2023 proposed meeting minutes as presented. 
 

b. Setting rescheduling or canceling future Board meetings including considering 
moving the June to May 2023 meeting. 

 
On a motion by Ms. Sissney, seconded by Mr. Elliott, the Board unanimously voted to amend the 
meeting schedule to move the June 6, 2023 meeting to May 30, 2023. 

 
3. Resolution recognizing the service of Trustee Christopher S. Moss – Jarvis V. 

Hollingsworth. 
 
This item was not taken up. 
 

4. Consider the Administrative Appeal of Janet Ross, including considering whether to 
hear oral arguments from the parties – Heather Traeger. 

 
Ms. Heather Traeger stated that the first issue before the Board was to consider whether to hear 
oral arguments or to consider the case on appeal based on the administrative record pursuant to 
TRS Rule 43.45. She said the staff recommendation is to not hold oral arguments. Ms. Traeger 
reported the issue at hand was a jurisdictional question which can be determined based upon the 
evidentiary record and noted the briefing provided by the parties did not reference the jurisdictional 
issue but the decedents mental capacity and undue influence.  
 
On a motion by Mr. Ball, seconded by Mr. Nance, the Board unanimously voted to not hear oral 
arguments on the appeal.    
 
Ms. Traeger then provided background on the substantive matter before the Board. She said the 
petitioner, Ms. Ross, claims that she should be the beneficiary for there was undue influence or 
mental capacity concerns on behalf of the retiree who completed the beneficiary designation form. 
Ms. Traeger said TRS had received the form completed properly, consistent with TRS rules and 
procedures. She said the executive director denied the appeal, upheld the decision of the 
administrative law judge who concluded that TRS did not have the authority to decide this 
particular question of mental capacity and undue influence. Ms. Traeger said the Board may 
accept, deny or modify the proposed findings of fact and proposed conclusions of law. She 
recommended the Board consider those items in executive session based on the advice of counsel 
to help form its decision. 
 
Mr. Hollingsworth noted that there were several executive session items on the mornings agenda 
and would recess into a consolidated executive session once the public presentations concluded.  

 
5. Consider the engagement of a provider of fiduciary counsel and related services 

including considering a finding that to deliberate or confer in open meeting would 
have a detrimental effect on the position of the retirement system in the negotiations 
with a third person – Heather Traeger. 

 



3 
 

Ms. Traeger reported that the current fiduciary counsel, Cohen Milstein, was selected in 2019 
through an RFQ process. She said in December 2022 another RFQ was issued and two highly 
qualified and known fiduciary counsels were selected to be interviewed by the Board.  

Ms. Suzanne Dugan and Mr. Luke Bierman representing Cohen Milstein provided background 
on their firm and an overview of views and services offered as fiduciary counsel. 

Ms. Ashley Dunning representing Nossaman firm provided background on her firm and an 
overview of views and services offered as fiduciary counsel. 

Mr. Hollingsworth announced the Board would retire into executive session later to deliberate on 
this item once all public presentations for executive session items were provided. 

6. Consider the role, performance and engagement of Board Investment Advisor AON 
including considering a finding that to deliberate or confer in open meeting would 
have a detrimental effect on the position of the retirement system in the negotiations 
with a third person – Katy Hoffman.  
 

Ms. Katy Hoffman provided the background of the services provided by the two investment 
consultants to the Board including Aon. She noted in 2018 the Board entered into a contract for 
an initial five-year term with two optional one-year extensions. She concluded by recommending 
recessing into executive session for further deliberations. 

Mr. Hollingsworth announced the Board would retire into executive session later on this item 
once all public presentations for executive session items were provided. He then announced 
without objection, taking up agenda item 8. 

8. Discuss and consider an investment in Bridge Industrial including considering a 
finding that deliberating or conferring in open meeting would have a detrimental 
effect on the position of the retirement system in negotiations with third parties or 
put the retirement system at a competitive disadvantage in the market – Eric Lang, 
Grant Walker and Jennifer Wenzel.  

 
Mr. Grant Walker reviewed why this investment was being brought to the Board for approval. 
He said the proposed $1.5 billion total commitment to Bridge exceeded the .5 percent limitation 
established in the Investment Policy Statement, requiring Board approval. Mr. Walker noted the 
remainder of the material was confidential and recommended the item be brought up during 
executive session. 
 

9. Review the report of the General Counsel on pending and contemplated litigation, 
including updates on litigation involving benefit-program contributions, retirement 
benefits, health-benefit programs, investment matters and open records and on legal 
or regulatory matters involving certain TRS vendors, investment managers, or 
other counterparties – Heather Traeger and J.R. Morgan.  

 
There was no public presentation for this item. 
 



4 
 

Mr. Hollingsworth announced the Board would retire into executive session.   
 

On a motion by Mr. Ball, seconded by Ms. Allred, the Board unanimously voted to find under 
Texas Government Code Section 825.115(e) for agenda items 5 and 6 that deliberating or 
conferring in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the Retirement 
System in negotiations with a third person.  

On a motion by Mr. Elliott, seconded by Ms. Sissney, the Board unanimously voted to find under 
Texas Government Code Section 8205.3011(b)(1) for agenda item 8 that deliberating or 
conferring in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the Retirement 
System in negotiations with a third party or put the Retirement System at a competitive 
disadvantage in the market.  

At 9:12 a.m. Mr. Hollingsworth announced the Board would go into executive session on the 
following agenda items and sections of the Government Code: item number 4 under Section 
551.071; items 5 and 6 under Sections 825.115 (e) and 55.071; and finally, item 9 under Section 
551.071.  

At 10:57 a.m. Mr. Hollingsworth reconvened the Board meeting in open session and would vote 
on the following motions: 

On a motion by Mr. Ball, seconded by Mr. Nance, the Board unanimously voted on item number 
4 to deny the appeal of Janet Ross, uphold the executive director’s order that denied Ms. Ross’ 
appeal, and adopt without changes the findings of fact and conclusions of law of the 
administrative law judge and authorize the chair to sign the order on the Board’s behalf.  

On a motion by Mr. Nance, seconded by Mr. Elliott, the Board unanimously voted on item 
number 5 to approve the following resolution selecting the law firm of Cohen Milstein to serve 
as the Board’s fiduciary counsel: 

Resolution of Board of Trustees 
April 27, 2023 

Relating to the Selection and Payment of Fiduciary Counsel 
 

WHEREAS, TRS Bylaws subsection 1.7(n) provides that the Board of Trustees 
(Board) of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) shall select and 
evaluate fiduciary counsel; 

WHEREAS, The current fiduciary counsel contract expires on August 31, 2023; 

WHEREAS, The Board every four years, issues a request for qualifications (RFQ) 
to select new fiduciary counsel for the Board. The RFQ for fiduciary counsel was 
issued on December 1, 2022;  

WHEREAS,  TRS conducted a competitive procurement for fiduciary counsel 
services, and the finalists provided presentations to the Board of Trustees on April 
27, 2023; 



5 
 

WHEREAS,  Pursuant to Section 825.203 of the Government Code, upon 
selection by the Board, a contract with the selected fiduciary counsel will be 
submitted to the Office of the Attorney General for approval;  

Now therefore, be it  

RESOLVED, That the Board hereby selects the law firm of Cohen Milstein to serve 
as fiduciary counsel; 

RESOLVED, That the Board authorizes the Executive Director or a designee to 
negotiate, with the assistance of legal counsel, an outside counsel contract with 
fiduciary counsel for a term of two fiscal years commencing on September 1, 2023, 
having determined that the firm provides the best overall value to TRS for the 
required services, and to obtain approval from the Office of the Attorney General 
(“OAG”) for the engagement of such outside counsel; and, if negotiations are 
deemed by the Executive Director in his discretion to be successful, then the 
Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute such contract with fiduciary 
counsel, and from time to time amend or modify, if needed, on such terms and 
conditions as the Executive Director may deem in his discretion to be in the best 
interest of TRS, and further to execute and deliver all such other documents that 
the Executive Director may deem necessary or appropriate to effect this resolution 
as conclusively evidenced by the taking of the action or the execution and delivery 
of the documents, and to incur, approve, and pay any budgeted expenses or costs 
associated with such contract and deemed in the discretion of the Executive 
Director, or his designee, to be reasonably necessary or advisable with respect to 
such contract; 

RESOLVED,  That the Board authorizes the Executive Director, prior to August 
31, 2025, to seek necessary approval from the OAG to engage outside counsel 
under a new contract for the FY26-FY27 biennium and to bring that to the Board 
for consideration no later than August 31, 2025. 

and 

RESOLVED,  That nothing in this resolution may be construed as a contract, an 
offer to contract with a power of acceptance that would form a contract, or an 
acceptance of an offer to contract, and TRS is not and will not be legally bound to 
any agreement unless and until the Executive Director has executed and delivered 
definitive agreements relating to the subject matter, as applicable. 

On a motion by Ms. Sissney, seconded by Ms. Allred, the Board unanimously voted on agenda 
item 6 to approve the following resolution to a two-year extension of the contract with Aon 
Hewitt Investment Consulting Inc., including the next strategic asset allocation study:   

Resolution to Extend the Contract for Board Investment Advisor Services 
April 27, 2023 

 
Whereas, Section 1.3(a) of the Board’s Investment Policy Statement states that 
the Board selects a Board Investment Advisor to provide investment advice and 



6 
 

related services primarily to the Board and, in aid of the services provided to the 
Board, to the Investment Management Division; 

Whereas,At the July 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees, the Board selected 
Aon Hewitt Investment Consulting, Inc. as representing the best overall value for 
TRS and authorized the Executive Director and his designees to negotiate, with 
the assistance and advice of legal counsel, an agreement with Aon Hewitt 
Investment Consulting, Inc. to serve as the Board Investment Advisor under the 
Investment Policy Statement for an initial term not to exceed five (5) years 
beginning with fiscal year 2019, with one or more options to extend for up to two 
additional years, on substantially the same terms discussed with the Board; and 

Whereas, The current contract with Aon Hewitt Investment Consulting is 
scheduled to expire on August 31, 2023; 

Whereas,Aon Hewitt Investment Consulting, Inc. has performed as required under 
the contract, including performing the statutorily required Investment Practices and 
Performance Review. Aon’s assistance will be important going forward as the 
Board begins the next Strategic Asset Allocation study; now, therefore, be it 

Resolved, That the Board authorizes and instructs the Executive Director or his 
delegee, with the assistance of TRS employees, to negotiate, with the assistance 
and advice of legal counsel, to take all actions and do all things necessary or 
desirable to negotiate a _two__-year extension of the contract with Aon Hewitt 
Investment Consulting, Inc., and to amend other such terms and conditions 
deemed by the Executive Director to be in the best interest of TRS; 

Resolved, That the Board authorizes the Executive Director or his delegee to 
execute and deliver all such other documents that the Executive Director and legal 
counsel may deem necessary or appropriate to implement this resolution, as 
conclusively evidenced by the taking of the action or the execution and delivery of 
the documents, and to incur, approve, and pay any budgeted expenses or costs 
associated with each of such agreements and deemed in the discretion of the 
Executive Director to be reasonably necessary or advisable with respect to each 
agreement; 

and 

Resolved, That the Executive Director is directed to report to and update the 
Board at its regular meetings, as requested, on the actions taken and activities 
performed under these resolutions. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Ball, seconded by Ms. Sissney, the Board unanimously voted on item 
number 8 to approve the following resolution regarding an investment in Bridge Platform for an 
initial allocation and commitment with respect to the allocation contemplated, consistent with 
IPS Appendix B for allocations in excess of .5 percent of the total fund value:  

 



7 
 

Resolution Regarding an Investment in Bridge Platform 
April 27, 2023 

 
Whereas, The Investment Policy Statement (“IPS”) section 1.3(c) established the Internal 
Investment Committee to review, consider, and authorize investments for the Private Markets 
Portfolio; 

Whereas,  IPS Appendix B limits the amount that may be initially be allocated or committed to a 
single manager organization, and requires prior TRS Board of Trustees (“Board”) authorization to 
exceed that limit; 

Whereas,  The Investment Division, acting through the Internal Investment Committee, has 
recommended that, consistent with the provisions of IPS Sections 1.3(c) and Appendix B, the 
Board authorize the Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”) to allocate an amount of up to $1,500 million 
(plus returned capital) (the “Allocation”) to Bridge Industrial or affiliates; now, therefore be it;  

Resolved, That the CIO or his designee be and hereby is authorized to negotiate the requisite 
legal agreements for the Allocation in various investment vehicles on substantially the same, or 
better, terms and conditions than those presented to the Board, and, if negotiations are deemed 
by the CIO or his designee, in its discretion, to be successful, then the CIO or his designee is 
hereby authorized to execute such definitive documents on such terms and conditions as the CIO 
may deem, in his discretion, to be in the best interest of TRS, and to execute and deliver all such 
other documents and agreements that the CIO or his designee may deem necessary or 
appropriate to effect this resolution, as conclusively evidenced by the taking of the action or the 
execution and delivery of the documents and agreements, and to incur, approve and pay any 
budgeted expenses or costs associated with such documents and agreements, and deemed in 
the discretion of the Executive Director and CIO to be reasonably necessary or advisable with 
respect to such documents and agreements; and 

Resolved, That the Board hereby expressly authorizes the initial allocation or commitment with 
respect to the Allocation contemplated hereby, consistent with the requirement of IPS Appendix 
B that any such allocations or commitments in excess of 0.5% of the total fund value require prior 
authorization of the Board; and 

Resolved, That the investments approved hereby and the authority granted in these resolutions 
to implement the approved investments does not supersede, waive, or otherwise affect the 
investment allocations set forth in the table in IPS Section 1.6. All investments shall be considered 
for purposes of the Total Manager Organization limits in the IPS Appendix B. 

 

7. Discuss and consider amendments to the Proxy Guidelines – Dale West and Wayne 
Speer.  

 
Mr. Dale West and Mr. Wayne Speer provided background of the Board’s Proxy Voting Policy.  
Mr. West said the Board appoints the proxy advisor and in 2020 the Board renewed its 
relationship with Institutional Shareholder Services, ISS, reserving the right to instruct the Proxy 
Committee to vote differently than recommended by ISS. He noted in prior years, TRS dissented 
very sparingly, if at all, but this year TRS disagreed with ISS on 20 votes. He said ISS appeared 
to tilt its benchmark policy slightly in a direction from a strict focus on shareholder return. He 



8 
 

reported ISS has created a new shareholder focus set of guidelines called the Global Board 
Aligned Proxy Voting Guidelines. Mr. Speer reported the Proxy Committee had evaluated the 
new guidelines and determined they are an improvement and are consistent with the Trust’s 
objectives of controlling risk and achieving a long-term rate of return with fiduciary standards.  
 
On a motion by Mr. Walls, seconded by Mr. Nance, the Board unanimously voted to approve the 
following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION CONCERNING MODIFICATIONS TO THE BENCHMARK 
GUIDELINES FOR PURPOSES OF TRS PROXY VOTING 

April 27, 2023 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the TRS Proxy Voting Policy, the Board of Trustees (the 
“Board”) of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (“TRS”) shall retain a 
reputable, independent proxy advisory service (the “Proxy Advisor”) to analyze 
proxy issues, make voting recommendations, and vote proxies as TRS’ agent; 
 
WHEREAS, Under the Board Procurement Policy, the Board considers and 
authorizes the selection of one or more proxy advisors; 
 
WHEREAS, On July 17, 2020, the Board selected Institutional Shareholder 
Services (ISS) as TRS’ proxy advisor and determined that engaging the firm 
represented the best overall value for TRS; 
 
WHEREAS, On February 17, 2022, the Board approved voting TRS proxies based 
on the ISS Benchmark Policy voting with additional custom guidelines related to 
climate-related criteria for evaluating directors, climate action plans, restrictions on 
business with fossil fuel companies, and Special Purpose Acquisition Company 
(SPAC) mergers (the “custom voting policy”); 
 
WHEREAS, On March 15, 2023, ISS published a new specialty set of voting 
guidelines, the Global Board-Aligned Proxy Voting Guidelines; 
 
WHEREAS, the Global Board-Aligned guidelines are designed to enable proxy 
holders to vote in a manner than upholds foundational corporate governance 
principles as a means of protecting and maximizing their investments; 
 
WHEREAS, IMD Proxy Committee recommends the Board replace the current 
custom voting policy with the new ISS Global Board-Aligned Proxy Voting 
Guidelines for purposes of TRS proxy voting pursuant to the TRS Proxy Voting 
Policy; 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board approves voting TRS proxies consistent with the new 
ISS Global Board-Aligned Proxy Voting Guidelines; 
 
RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or a designee, with the assistance of 
legal counsel, is authorized to negotiate an amendment to the current contract with 
ISS, the Proxy Advisor, to include the aforementioned voting benchmark that is 
consistent with the best interests of TRS. 
 



9 
 

RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or a designee, in implementing this 
resolution in the best interests of TRS, may execute contract amendments and 
other ancillary instruments that the Executive Director or a designee may deem 
necessary or appropriate and to incur, approve, and pay reasonable and 
necessary budgeted expenses or costs associated with the executed contract and 
any amendment. 
 

10. Review and Discuss the Executive Director’s report on the following matters – Brian 
Guthrie: 
A. Administrative operational matters, including updates on financial, audit, legal, 

staff services, special projects, strategic planning, legislative, personnel matters 
and Moving Forward Together.  

B. Board operational matters, including a review of draft agendas for upcoming 
meetings.  

C. Event notices or reminders; holiday and other schedules of interest; board 
member, employee or other individual recognitions; and expressions of thanks, 
congratulations, or condolences.  

 
Mr. Brian Guthrie reviewed upcoming and past conferences and meetings.  He provided a 
legislative update including the midyear actuarial update. He said, as of February 28th, the funding 
period went up by one year but the Trust remains under 31 years, meeting the statutory definition 
of actuarial soundness and allowing benefit enhancements to be considered by this Legislature. He 
announced that Mr. Elliott, Ms. Allred and Mr. Williams were recently confirmed by the Senate. 
He reported on the upcoming Trustee Elections, noting the election ends on May 5th for the At-
Large and Retiree positions. He gave an update on Alpha-Bravo’s progress. Mr. Guthrie concluded 
by reviewing items for May and July Board meetings. 
 
At 11:50 a.m., Mr. Hollingsworth announced the Board would recess to take up the scheduled 
committee meetings and reconvene on Friday, April 28, 2023 with Ms. Sissney as presiding. 
 
 
  



10 
 

April 28, 2023  

The Board of Trustees of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas met on April 28, 2023 in the 
boardroom located on the Fifth Floor in the East Building of TRS’ offices located at 1000 Red 
River Street, Austin, Texas, 78701.   

The following Board members were present: 
Nanette Sissney, Acting Chair 
Brittny Allred 
Michael Ball 
John Elliott  
Christopher Moss 
James D. Nance 
Robert H. Walls, Jr. 
Elvis Williams 
 
Others present: 
Brian Guthrie, TRS    Steve Voss, AON 
Andrew Roth, TRS   Mike McCormick, AON 
Don Green, TRS     Laurie Patton, EY 
Heather Traeger, TRS    Chris Gibson, EY 
Jase Auby, TRS    Jim Baker, Private Equity Stakeholder Project 
Barbie Pearson, TRS    Nancy Glick, National Consumer League   
Katrina Daniel, TRS     
Amanda Jenami, TRS  
Shannon Gosewehr, TRS      
Katherine Farrell, TRS    
Nick Gonzalez, TRS  
Jennifer Whitman, TRS 
Adam Fambrough, TRS 
Billy Lowe, TRS 
Lori LaBrie, TRS 
Kristi Glasgall, TRS   
Suzanne Dugan, Cohen Milstein 
Dr. Keith Brown, Board Investment Advisor 
 
 
At 12:28 p.m. Ms. Nanette Sissney, Acting Chair reconvened the board meeting. 
 

11. Provide an opportunity for public comment – Jarvis V. Hollingsworth. 
 
Mr. Jim Baker representing Private Equity Stakeholder Project expressed concern with TRS 
investments with real estate firm Blackstone that has faced scrutiny from investors over child labor 
at portfolio company Packers Sanitation. 
 



11 
 

Ms. Nancy Glick representing the National Consumers League expressed concern over under-
treatment of obesity care and urged TRS to continue to include treatment of AOMs in TRS health 
plans. 
 
Ms. Sissney announced without objection taking up agenda item 16. 
 

16.  Receive the report of the Policy Committee on its April 27, 2023 meeting and 
consider the following – Committee Chair:  
A.  Adopting the proposed amendments to the Code of Ethics for Contractors 

and associated forms: Conflict of Interest Disclosure and Request for 
Determination (Disclosure Statement), Annual Ethics Compliance Statement, 
Disclosure Statement for Financial Services Providers and Expenditure 
Reporting Form for Contractors;  

B.  Consider adoption of the proposed amendments to the following TRS rules in 
Chapter 25 of Title 34, Part 3 of the Texas Administrative Code – Heather 
Traeger and Nick Gonzalez:  
1. §25.4. Substitutes  
2. §25.6. Part-time or Temporary Employment  
3. §25.25. Required Deposits  
4. §25.31 Percentage Limits on Compensation Increases  
5. §25.35 Employer Payments for New Members  
6. §25.36 Employer Payments for Members Not Covered under the Federal 

Old-Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance Program  
7. §25.113 Transfer of Credit between TRS and ERS.  
8. §25.123 Certification  
9. §25.131 Required Service  
10. §25.152 Eligibility, Cost, and Payment for Developmental Leave Credit  
11. §25.172 Optional Retirement Program  

 
Mr. Elliott, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Policy Committee: 
 

The Policy Committee met on April 27, 2023. The committee approved the 
proposed minutes of its December 2022 meeting. The committee received an 
overview of the Policy Committee's calendar year 2023 work plan. 
 
The committee recommended to the Board adoption of the proposed amendments 
to the code of ethics for contractors and associated forms. 
 
The committee recommended to the Board adoption of the proposed amendments 
to the TRS rules in Chapter 25 of Title 34, Part 3 of the Texas Administrative Code. 
 
The Committee authorized for publication in the Texas Register notice of the 
proposed amendments to TRS Rules in Chapters 25, 29 and 47 of Title 34, Part 3 
of the Texas Administrative Code. 
 
And the committee authorized for publication in the Texas Register notice of 
proposed repeal of the TRS rules in Chapter 41 of Title 34, Part 3 of the Texas 
Administrative Code. 



12 
 

 
Mr. Elliott concluded the committee report with the following motions: 
 
On a motion by Mr. Elliott, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the amendments to the code of 
ethics for contractors and associated forms as recommended by the Policy Committee. 
 
On a motion by Mr. Elliott, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the proposed amendments to the 
TRS rules in Chapter 25 of title 34, part 3 of the Texas Administrative Code, as recommended by the 
Policy Committee. 
 

17.  Receive the report of the Investment Management Committee on its April 28, 2023 
meeting – Committee Chair.  

 
Mr. Elliott, Committee Member, provided the following report of the Investment Management 
Committee: 
 

The Investment Management Committee met on 7 April 28, 2023. 
 
Jase Auby began with an overview of the Investment Management Committee's 
calendar year work plan for 2023. He then presented his CIO update. 
 
Following that, the fourth quarter 2022 performance review was presented by 
Steve Voss and Mike McCormick of Aon Hewitt. The committee was then provided 
with an annual update of public markets presented by Dale West, Brad Gilbert and 
KJ VanAckeran. Steven Wilson presented a review for stable value hedge funds, 
and Ashley Baum provided a review for absolute returns. 
 
Concluding the Investment Management Committee, James Nield and Stephen 
Kim provided a review of the semiannual risk report. 

 
Ms. Sissney announced, without objection, that agenda item 12 would be taken up next. 
 

12. Receive the report of the Strategic Planning Committee on its April 27, 2023 
meeting – Committee Chair.  
 

Ms. Allred, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Strategic Planning 
Committee: 
 

The Strategic Planning Committee met on April 15 27, 2023. 
 
Mr. Don Green outlined the committee's work plan for the upcoming calendar year. 
Mr. Green then reviewed TRS's proposed updates to the 2023-27 Strategic Plan 
goals, objectives and strategies. The committee voted unanimously to recommend 
to the Board adoption of the proposed updates to the 2023-27 Strategic Plan goals 
objectives and strategies. 
 
Mr. Green and Ms. Michelle Pagan provided an overview of TRS ERM program. 
 



13 
 

Lastly, Mr. Green, along with Strategic Plan objective owners, discussed and 
reviewed the results forum information for the 2023-27 TRS Strategic Plan 
objectives. The objectives included: increasing identification of underpayments 
and collection of future contributions; achieving the investment rate of return; 
improving customer service experience; and improving timeliness and accuracy of 
employer reported data. 
 
Mr. Green also provided an overview of the enterprise stoplight report. 

 
Ms. Allred concluded the committee report with the following motion: 
 
On a motion by Ms. Allred, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the updated 2023-27 Strategic Plan 
goals, objectives and strategies, as recommended by the Strategic Planning Committee. 

 
13. Receive the report of the Benefits Committee on its April 27, 2023 meeting and 

consider the following – Committee Chair: 
A. Acceptance of the Medical Board Meeting minutes of January and 

February 2023 meetings; and 
B. Approval of the Benefit Payments for December 2022 to February 

2023.  
 

Mr. Williams, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Benefits Committee: 
 

The Benefits Committee met on April 27, 2023. The committee approved the 
proposed minutes of the Benefits Committee for the December 8, 2022, meeting. 
 
Ms. Barbie Pearson, chief benefit officer, and Ms. Katrina Daniel, chief health care 
officer, presented the Benefits Committee work plan for the calendar year 2023.  
 
Ms. Barbie Pearson, the chief benefit officer, provided an update on the Medical 
Board. The committee recommends to the Board the acceptance of the Medical 
Board meeting minutes for November 2022 and January 2023.  
 
Ms. Pearson provided an update on benefit payments for the second quarter of 
fiscal year 2023. The committee recommends to the Board the approval of benefit 
payments for December 2022 through February 2023. 
 
The committee received an update from Ms. Pearson on Benefit Services 
operations for the first six months of fiscal year 2023. The report included updates 
on the number of members and employers served in the first six months of fiscal 
year 2023. This report also included updates on service levels for all key member 
service areas, staffing updates and an update on the deployment of the death 
claims and retirement process from the legacy mainframe to TRUST. The new 
process will be similar for members but a major change for our processors. Ms. 
Pearson reported that she anticipates a dip in service levels while staff adapt to 
their new process.  
 
Next, the committee received an update from Ms. Katrina Daniel, chief health care 
officer. Ms. Daniel presented the rebranding of the Health and Insurance Benefits 
Division to the TRS Health Division. 



14 
 

 
Christina Juarez, Health Division engagement manager, gave the Retiree Advisory 
Committee, known as RAC, update for Ms. Mueller, chair of the committee, who 
was unable to be present. Ms. Juarez also made the Benefits Committee aware of 
the upcoming need to appoint three new RAC members at an upcoming Board 
meeting. 
 
Next, Ms. Monica Bernal, senior director of operations in the Health Division, 
discussed upcoming outreach efforts and progress with installing the new 
pharmacy benefit manager, Express Scripts, which will begin first for the TRS-
ActiveCare on September 1, 2023. 
 
Then Ms. Yimei Zhao, senior director of finance for the Health Division, presented 
recent savings of nearly $80 million across the health plans resulting from contract 
oversight efforts. 
 
Finally, trustees were informed of the TRS-Care and TRS-ActiveCare fund 
balances which were both healthy at this point. 

 
Mr. Williams concluded the committee report with the following motions:  
 
On a motion by Mr. Williams, the Board unanimously voted to accept the Medical Board meeting 
minutes for November 2022 and January 2023, as recommended by the Benefits Committee. 
 
On a motion by Mr. Williams, the Board unanimously voted to approve the benefit payments for 
December 2022 through February 2023, as recommended by the Benefits Committee. 
 

 
14. Receive the report of the Budget Committee on its April 27, 2023 meeting – 

Committee Chair.  
 

Mr. Ball, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Budget Committee: 
 

The Budget Committee met Thursday, April 27, 17 2023. The first item of business 
was approval of the minutes of the December 2022 Budget Committee meeting.  
 
Chief financial officer Mr. Don Green reviewed the Budget Committee work plan, 
which outlined the planned Budget Committee meetings for calendar year 2023.  
 
Mr. Green also presented a high level overview of the fiscal year 2023 midyear 
budget status, as well as the FTE status report. He addressed the spending activity 
for the first six months of the fiscal year and the projected FTE cap variance. 
 
Mr. Green presented a high level overview of the fiscal year 2024 administrative 
operating budget that's currently under development. He discussed the major 
budget impacts from legislative recommendations for fiscal year 2024. Mr. Green 
also discussed how staff will continue to review the budget and resource requests 
and intends to recommend a budget within appropriated levels and FTE limitations. 

 



15 
 

 
15. Receive the report of the Compensation Committee on its April 27, 2023 meeting – 

Committee Chair.  
 

Mr. Nance, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Compensation Committee: 
 

The Compensation Committee met on April 27, 2023. The committee approved 
the proposed minutes of its December 2022 meeting.  
 
The committee received an overview of the Compensation Committee's calendar 
year 2023 work plan from Shunne Powell, chief organizational excellence officer.  
 
The committee also received an update on staffing, turnover and implementation 
of the TRS classification plan from Shunne Powell who is our chief organizational 
excellence officer, and Michelle Gray, our deputy chief organizational excellence 
officer. 

 
 
18.  Receive the report of the Audit, Compliance, and Ethics Committee on its April 

28, 2023 meeting and consider adopting proposed revisions to the Fiscal Year 2023 
Audit Plan – Committee Chair.  

 
Mr. Walls, Committee Chair, provided the following report of the Audit, Compliance and Ethics 
Committee: 
 

The Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee met on Friday, April 28, 2023, 
earlier today. The committee approved the minutes of the December 8, 2022, 
committee meeting.  
 
The chief audit executive, Amanda Jenami, presented an overview of the Audit, 
Compliance and Ethics Committee's calendar year 2023 work plan. Then our 
general counsel, Heather Traeger, and chief compliance officer, also Heather 
Traeger, presented her compliance reports.  
 
Internal Audit staff presented the results of the review of private equity portfolio 
operations and provided a status update on prior audit recommendations.  
 
The committee then went into an executive session to discuss the results of the 
review of dependent eligibility for TRS-Care, the audit of malware protection and 
ransomware readiness, as well as to consider the chief audit executive's 
recommended revisions to the fiscal year 2023 Audit Plan. The committee then 
reconvened the meeting in open session to receive some administrative reports.  
The meeting adjourned at 11:56 a.m. 

 
Mr. Walls concluded the committee report with the following motions:  
 
On a motion by Mr. Walls, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the proposed revisions to the 
fiscal year 2023 Audit Plan, as recommended by the ACE Committee. 
 



16 
 

 
19.  Receive an update on the TEAM Program – Andrew Roth, Billy Lowe, Jennifer 

Whitman and Adam Fambrough. (27) 
 

Ms. Jennifer Whitman noted the update would be focused on the successful deployment of the 
retirement application processing and death claims release (RAP/DTH) that recently occurred. 
She quickly gave an update regarding the overall program noting there was one major release left 
on the TEAM Program roadmap, the annuity payroll and tax reporting release.  
 
Mr. Adam Fambrough reported on the deployment saying it was the largest release since the 
Phase 1 go-live in 2017.  He reviewed what work processes were included in the RAP/DTH 
release and the stages that were automated. He also reviewed how the end users, the retirement 
and claims processing teams, were readied for the release.  Mr. Billy Lowe reviewed the 
operational approach to and execution of the release. 
 

20.  Receive an update from the TEAM Program Independent Program Assessment 
(IPA) Vendor – Laurie Patton, EY.  

Ms. Laurie Patton stated she has witnessed continued improvement and applaud the transparency 
and willingness of the team to work collaboratively. Mr. Chris Gibson reviewed the training and 
preparedness of the team for the release led to arriving at such a success. He also discussed the 
CRM release that took place in February noting how well the communications took place.  Ms. 
Patton concluded by noting next steps to continue to enhance and learn from successes and 
progress. 
 

21.  Receive TRS Annual and Fourth Quarter Ombudsman’s Report – Lori LaBrie.  
 
Ms. Lori LaBrie provided the annual report for calendar year 2022. She announced the Ombuds 
Office was now a member of the International Ombuds Association. She reviewed the number of 
communications, complaints the office received and plans for the next year. Ms. LaBrie also 
provided the quarterly update covering the months of January through March of 2023. She reported 
on the hot topics, complaints and communications.   

 
22.  Review and consider procurements and contracts, including the following – 

Shannon Gosewehr:  
A. Receive Procurement and Contracts Update;  
B. Consider accepting the Procurement and Contracting Report.  

 
Ms. Shannon Gosewehr stated staff has been working hard to finalize all of the contracts TRS 
needs to be able to open Alpha in a few weeks. She provided an update on HUB outreach noting 
TRS has awarded work to 111 HUB vendors for a total of $8.8 million worth of work.  She also 
provided an update on the Contract Management Office.  
 
Ms. Gosewehr reviewed the quarterly Procurement and Contracting report.  
 
On a motion by Mr. Nance, seconded by Mr. Williams, the Board unanimously voted to accept 
the Procurement and Contracting report as presented by staff. 



17 
 

 
23. Receive the Deputy Director’s update – Andrew Roth.  

 
Mr. Andrew Roth reviewed the annual CEM report that provides a benchmark for large pension 
systems in the U.S. He noted TRS’ service score rose slightly to above the peer median. He 
reported TRS has the largest number of active members of any pension fund in the U.S. and is 
fourth in the number of annuitants. Mr. Roth provided an update on the executive and 
professional coaching contracts the Board selected in February. He concluded with an update on 
the Enterprise Data Governance Council. 

 
24. Receive an annual update on TRS Cybersecurity – Kristi Glasgall.  

 
Ms. Kristi Glasgall provided a high-level overview of the in-depth defense perimeter security 
controls in place at TRS. She shared how in order to protect TRS and member data, the information 
security team applies a layered approach for defense monitoring and remediation.  
 
At 2:28 p.m., with no more scheduled business before the Board Ms. Sissney adjourned the 
meeting.  
 
APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
OF TEXAS ON THE __ DAY OF MAY 2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
__________________________   _________________________ 
Katherine H. Farrell     Date 
Secretary to the TRS Board of Trustees 



 
 

TAB 5 
  



Brian Guthrie

May 30, 2023

Executive Director’s 
Report



General Updates
88th Legislative Update
Review of Evaluation Timeline
Upcoming Board Meeting Agendas



General Updates

Upcoming Conferences and Meetings:

• July 16 – 19, 2023: NCTR 23rd Annual Trustee Workshop, Williamsburg, VA

• July 19 – 21, 2023: PPI Summer Roundtable, San Francisco, CA

• July 20, 2023: TRS SPN, New York, NY

• August 5 – 9, 2023 NASRA Annual Conference, Broomfield, CO

• September 11 – 13, 2023: Council of Institutional Investors Fall Conference, Long Beach, CA

Past Meetings and Updates:
• May 8 – 11, 2023: CEM Global Pension Administration Conference, Vancouver, CA
• May 21 – 24, 2023: NCPERS Annual Conference & Exhibition, New Orleans, LA. 

3



Governor Veto Period

June 18:  Last day for Governor to sign or veto

 Once the Legislature has adjourned sine die, or if 
the bill is presented to the governor less than 10 
days (not counting Sundays) prior to final 
adjournment, the Governor has 20 days (counting 
Sundays) after the final day of the session to sign 
or veto the bill. 

 If neither action is taken, the bill becomes law 
without the Governor's signature.

Source: https://lrl.texas.gov/geninfo/faq.cfm#sineDie
4



Historical Passage Rates

YEAR
TOTAL 
BILLS 
FILED*

NEW
LAWS*

% 
PASSED

2003** 5,592 1,384 25%
2005** 5,484 1,389 25%
2007 6,190 1,481 24%
2009** 7,419 1,459 20%
2011** 5,796 1,379 24%
2013** 5,868 1,437 24%
2015 6,276 1,323 21%
2017** 6,631 1,211 18%
2019 7,324 1,429 20%
2021** 6,927 1,073 15%

8,046
Bills Filed in Both House 

and Senate

232
Signed by Governor

23
Law Without 

Signature

2
Vetoed by Governor 

1,246
Passed the Legislature

*Source: Legislative Reference Library (https://lrl.texas.gov/sessions/billStatistics.cfm). Stats limited to HBs and SBs; does not include HJRs and SJRs.
**Does not account for special sessions
***Initial counts from Telicon, a subscriber based legislative service

88th LEGISLATIVE SESSION
as of 5/29/2023***

5

https://lrl.texas.gov/sessions/billStatistics.cfm


Senate Bill 10: Benefit Enhancements

One-time $7,500 stipend 
for eligible retirees who are 
75 years of age and older 

Estimated annuitants: 
186,000

One-time $2,400 stipend 
for eligible retirees between 

the ages of 70-74
Estimated annuitants: 

104,000

The stipends to be issued 
by TRS in September 

2023

6

See the new TRS information page on Benefit Enhancements
 Funding provided up front to pay for all benefit enhancements 

provided by the bill.
 Funding for the stipend will be issued in early fall and funding 

for the COLAs will be issued upon voter approval at the Nov. 7, 
2023 election.



Senate Bill 10: Benefit Enhancements

7

6% COLA
 Effective Date of Retirement: 

on or before August 31, 2001
 Estimated annuitants: 

75,000

4% COLA
 Effective Date of Retirement: 

9/1/01-8/31/13
 Estimated annuitants: 

195,000

2% COLA
 Effective Date of 

Retirement: 9/1/13-8/31/20
 Estimated annuitants: 

150,000

COLAs do not take effect 
until HJR 2 is approved by 

voters on November 7, 
2023. To be issued 

January 2024.



TRS-ActiveCare: Appropriated Funds to Reduce Premiums 

An appropriation of $588.5 million for the 
FY24-25 biennium

Target less than ~10% premium increases 
on average across four fiscal years until 

premiums reflect costs

8



9

Special Session #1

First Called Special Session Began Monday, May 29th 

Property 
Taxes

Legislation to cut property-tax rates solely by 
reducing the school district maximum 
compressed tax rate in order to provide lasting 
property-tax relief for Texas taxpayers.

Border 
Security 

Legislation solely for the purpose of increasing 
or enhancing the penalties for certain criminal 
conduct involving the smuggling of persons or 
the operation of a stash house. 

“Many critical items remain that must be passed. Several special sessions 
will be required. To ensure that each priority receives the time and attention
it deserves to pass into law, only a few will be added each session.”

Governor 
calls a 
special 
session

Governor 
sets agenda 
for the call

Special 
sessions 

last up to 30 
days



2023 Evaluation Timeline for Board Direct Reports (Revised)

10

Focus provides 
process steps and 

instructional training 
video to Trustees

Focus provides goals 
and achievements for 

direct reports to 
Trustees

Trustees receive 
supplemental 
materials for 
evaluations 

Trustees complete 
online evaluations & 

interviews with Focus

Focus finalizes 
evaluation reports

Focus presents 
evaluations-

compensation 
considered by 

Trustees

June 5 June 16 June 19-30

August September 

Mid-June

Focus sends 
introduction email to 

Trustees

May



Upcoming Agendas

July 13 - 14, 2023 (Quarterly Meeting)
July 13, 2023 July 14, 2023
Strategic Planning Committee Committee Reports
Result Forum Report Out ED Report
Rvw Proposed FY 24 ED Areas of Focus - Trustee Election Results

TEAM Update
Benefits Committee Ombuds Report
Operational Updates Deputy Director’s Report
Medical Board Physician Contract Renewal Dr. Brown’s Contract
Medical and Pharmacy Claim Audit Results Cybersecurity Update

Policy Committee
Policy on Negotiated Rulemaking & ADR
Retiree Advisory Committee Procedures
Possible Proposed Rules Implementing Legislation

Budget Committee
FY 2024 Budgets
Statutory Certifications

Compensation Committee
Review Incentive Pay Plans
Classification Plan Update

Investment Management Committee
CIO Update
1st Q 2023 Performance Review
Annual Review of External Private Mkts
Rvw Proposed Modifications to IPS

Audit Compliance and Ethics Committee
Internal Audit and Compliance Reports
Audit Results on OPEB and TRS’ Employer Pension Liability Allocation Schedules

11



Upcoming Agendas

September 14 - 15, 2023
September 14, 2023 September 15, 2023
Committees Board
Strategy and Planning Committee Approve Calendar Year 2023 Meetings

Consider ED’s FY 24 Areas of Focus Performance Evaluations of Bd Direct Reports
Update on Member & Employer Outreach Committee Reports

Health Care Actuarial Contract
Benefits Committee Cybersecurity Update

Operational Updates ED Report
Approval of Benefits Ombuds Report
RAC Appointments & Chair Deputy Director Report

TEAM Update
Compensation Committee

Review IMD and ED’s PIPP 

Policy Committee
Update Policy Review Schedule
Amend IPS
Adopt proposed rules implementing legislation

Investment Management Committee
CIO and Market Update
2nd Quarter 2023 Performance Review
Semi Annual Risk Report

ACE Committee
Proposed revisions to Internal Audit Charter
Proposed Annual Audit Plan for FY 2024
Planned Audit of ACFR and Financial Audit of TRICOT

12



 
 

TAB 6 



Katrina Daniel, Chief Health Care Officer
Meaghan Bludau, Chief of Staff, Health
Melanie Ingleby, FSA, Lead Health Actuary
Kirsten Schatten, ASA, FCA, MAAA, Senior 
Vice President, Segal Consulting 

May 30, 2023

TRS-ActiveCare 

Rates and Benefits 

Changes for FY 2024



Agenda

Shaping a New Generation of TRS Health Plan Innovation

FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Self-Insured Rates & Benefits Changes

FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Fully-Insured HMO Rates & Benefits Changes

2



Working With Employers to Lower Health Care Costs

3

TRS-ActiveCare works with employers to help them understand health care cost drivers

and how they can empower their employees to make cost-effective decisions. 

Dr. Wayne Guidry, Assistant 

Superintendent of Longview ISD, 

on partnering with TRS-ActiveCare.



Bending the Health Care Cost Curve

4

Note: Allowed charges represent the cost to both the plan and participants. TRS plans include all self-insured plans. 

Milliman data for Texas-ASO does not include pharmacy rebates. Excluding rebates from TRS All Plans would increase 
cumulative growth to 17%. This comparison does not adjust for changes in plan design or demographics over time.

Texas Large Self-Insured 
Employers: 38%

TRS All Plans: 
12%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY2021

Per Member Cost Growth Has Been Lower at TRS than Texas Peers
Cumulative Increase in Per Member Allowed Charges Since 2013

TRS cost growth is 

26% below the Texas 

self-funded market over 

the previous 8 years



2nd Year of Regional Rating: 
Sustaining TRS-ActiveCare Scale & Advantage

5

Maintaining the plan size with regional rates allows TRS to offer districts:

✓ Locked-in premiums in advance of plan year

✓ Savings by eliminating need to buy stop-loss insurance and risk charges

✓ Market-leading discounts

✓ Low administrative costs

✓ Ongoing rate stability

✓ Protection from volatility and catastrophic claims

✓ Turnkey, one-stop administration & operations

✓ Broad networks and comprehensive coverage

99% of participating 

employers chose to 

remain with 

TRS-ActiveCare 

for FY 24



Regional Rating Methodology

Adjusting rates for regional health care costs allows TRS-ActiveCare to stay 
competitive to school employers shopping across the state for coverage.

6

Pricing is based on multiple factors:

✓ Average statewide rate

✓ Regional cost of care

✓ Demographics like age and gender

✓ Population risk

✓ Historical costs

✓ Network and benefits

✓ Addition and elimination of employers in the plan



TRS-ActiveCare Receives Legislative Appropriation

• The Texas Legislature invested $588.5M in TRS-ActiveCare over coming biennium to 
help educators have affordable health coverage.

• Even without this funding, TRS-ActiveCare offers a competitive option compared to 
other health plans offered to public school employers.

• TRS aggressively manages health care costs and TRS-ActiveCare offers cost-efficient 
plans with 97 cents of every dollar going directly to health care for members.

• In plan year 2024, employers will see premium changes that range from a reduction of 
$24 per month for employees that cover just themselves and to an increase of $172 
per month for people who cover their families.

7

We’re all keenly aware of the staffing challenges in the education sector that 
affect not just Texas, but the nation. We seek to be one solution to maintaining a 
solid teacher workforce that will educate Texans for years to come.



TRS-ActiveCare Receives Legislative Appropriation

The Texas Legislature invested $588.5M in TRS-ActiveCare over the coming 
2024-25 biennium to help educators have affordable health coverage.

8

Equates to average annual 

savings for educators of 

$1,100 over the coming 
2024-25 biennium

Prior appropriation of 
federal funds equated to 
average annual savings of 

$1,500 in current FY 23



9

Regional Relativities by Education Service Center Region

Higher

Middle 

Lower

Current FY 2023 Plan Year Upcoming FY 2024 Plan Year

16

17

18

19

9

14

15

11 10

12

20

13

8

7

6
5

4
3

2

1

16

17

19 

18

9

11 10
8

7
14

15

20

12

5
6

13

3
4

2

1



FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Gross Premiums (Before Employer Contribution)

10

Low-Cost Region

(Region 18 Midland)

Mid-Cost Region

(Region 6 Huntsville)

High-Cost Region

(Region 11 Fort Worth)

Plan Tier New Rate Dollar & Percent 
Change New Rate Dollar & Percent 

Change New Rate Dollar & Percent 
Change*

Primary

Employee Only $347 +$4 (1.2%) $421 $19 (4.7%) $461 $44 (10.6%)
Employee + Spouse $937 -$30 (-3.1%) $1,137 $4 (0.4%) $1,245 $69 (5.9%)
Employee + Child(ren) $590 -$26 (-4.2%) $716 -$7 (-1.0%) $784 $33 (4.4%)
Employee + Family $1,180 +$23 (2.0%) $1,432 $76 (5.6%) $1,568 $163 (11.6%)

Primary+

Employee Only $407 -$24 (-5.6%) $494 -$11 (-2.2%) $541 $16 (3.0%)
Employee + Spouse $1,059 +$6 (0.6%) $1,285 $51 (4.1%) $1,407 $123 (9.6%)
Employee + Child(ren) $692 -$1 (-0.1%) $840 $28 (3.4%) $920 $75 (8.9%)
Employee + Family $1,344 +$20 (1.5%) $1,631 $79 (5.1%) $1,786 $172 (10.7%)

HD

Employee Only $357 +$3 (0.8%) $433 $18 (4.3%) $475 $46 (10.7%)
Employee + Spouse $964 -$32 (-3.2%) $1,170 $4 (0.3%) $1,283 $74 (6.1%)
Employee + Child(ren) $607 -$28 (-4.4%) $737 -$7 (-0.9%) $808 $36 (4.7%)
Employee + Family $1,214 +$24 (2.0%) $1,473 $79 (5.7%) $1,615 $170 (11.8%)

AC 2

Employee Only $1,013 $0 (0.0%) $1,013 $0 (0.0%) $1,013 $0 (0.0%)
Employee + Spouse $2,402 $0 (0.0%) $2,402 $0 (0.0%) $2,402 $0 (0.0%)
Employee + Child(ren) $1,507 $0 (0.0%) $1,507 $0 (0.0%) $1,507 $0 (0.0%)
Employee + Family $2,841 $0 (0.0%) $2,841 $0 (0.0%) $2,841 $0 (0.0%)

*Increases vary by region, plan and tier, and for ~37K subscribers, the increase by plan and tier exceeds 10%, with the highest 
being 12.7%.



FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Benefit Alignments

11

TRS is aligning benefits with the market and to comply with regulatory requirements.

Benefit Alignment Current FY 23 Proposed FY 24 

TRS-ActiveCare HD Plan

Maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP)

$7,050 individual

$14,100 family

$7,500 individual  ↑

$15,000 family  ↑

TRS-ActiveCare Primary Plan

MOOP

$8,150 individual

$16,300 family

$7,500 individual ↓

$15,000 family ↓

TRS-ActiveCare Primary+ Plan

Family Deductible
$3,600 $2,400 ↓

TRS-ActiveCare Primary+ Plan

PCP Copay
$30 $15 ↓

TRS-ActiveCare Primary+ Plan

Mental Health Office Visit Copay
$30 $15 ↓

TRS-ActiveCare Primary, Primary+, AC2 Plans

Mental Health Virtual Visit Copay
$70 $0 ↓



12

TRS-ActiveCare: Health Maintenance 
Organizations (HMOs)



TRS-ActiveCare: Regional Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs)

13

Baylor Scott 

& White

Blue Cross 

Blue Shield 

of Texas



TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Benefits

• Proposed Benefit Changes

• No changes for South TX BCBSTX Blue Essentials HMO
• No changes for West TX BCBSTX Blue Essentials HMO

14

FY 24 Baylor Scott and White HMO Benefit 

ChangesBenefit FY 2023 FY 2024

Individual Medical Deductible

Family Medical Deductible

$1,900

$4,750

$2,400

$4,800

Individual Maximum Out of Pocket

Family Maximum Out of Pocket

$8,000

$15,000

$8,150

$16,300

Medical Coinsurance 20% 25%

Generic Prescription Drug Copay for 30-day or 90-day supply $12 / $30 $14 / $35

Preferred Brand Drug 30%  after Rx deductible 35%  after Rx deductible

Specialty Drug
25%  or 35%  after Rx deductible (preferred 

or nonpreferred)
35%  after Rx deductible

Primary Care Physician 18+ $15 copay $20 copay



TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Premiums

15

Regions 4 & 6 Region 10 Region 11 Regions 12 & 13

Proposed Premiums

Employee Only
$553.45 

(+$25.45)

$569.76 
(+$26.41)

$596.96 
(+$27.72)

$515.37 
(+$23.82)

Employee & Spouse
$1,390.74 
(+$65.52)

$1,432.42 
(+$67.50)

$1,501.90 
(+$70.82)

$1,293.46 
(+$60.88)

Employee & Children
$889.98 

(+$41.67)

$916.49 
(+$42.92)

$960.68 
(+$45.03)

$828.11 
(+$38.72)

Employee & Family
$1,600.72 
(+$75.52)

$1,648.78 
(+$77.80)

$1,728.86 
(+$81.62)

$1,488.60 
(+70.18)

Total Premium Change 

from FY 2023 to FY 2024
5% 5% 5% 5%

FY 24 BS&W Regional HMO Rate Changes



TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Premiums

16

Region 1 Regions 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18

Proposed Premiums

Employee Only
$777.14

(+$162.50)

$865.00
(+$175.40)

Employee & Spouse
$1,882.30
(+$398.14)

$2,103.16
(+$430.19)

Employee & Children
$1,217.66
(+$256.44)

$1,361.42
(+$277.84)

Employee & Family
$2,003.82
(+$424.06)

$2,233.34
(+$457.76)

Total Premium Change 

from FY 2023 to FY 2024
+27% +26%

FY 24 BCBSTX Blue Essentials HMO Rate Changes



Engagement & Support for Employers 

17

Education & 

Training

Personalized

Support

Improve 

Participant 

Experience

Group 

Outreach

• 6 Benefits 

Administrator 

Trainings

• Email campaign

• BA Toolkit website

• Quarterly TRS-

ActiveCare Connect 

Calls

• 10 Chat Campaigns

• 10 District 

Ambassadors

• 4 Pharmacy (Express 

Scripts) District 

Ambassadors

• Wellness Consultant 

Support

• Personal Health 

Guides

• 6 Participant Webinars

• 7 Professional 

Association 

Conferences

• 5 Presentations to 

ESC Regional 

Leaders

• Roundtable 

Conversations
New

New



18

Questions?



 
 
 

   
 

2727 Paces Ferry Road SE 
Building One, Suite 1400 
Atlanta, GA 30339-4053 

T 678.306.3100 
F 678.669.1887 

segalco.com 
 
 

 
May 26, 2023 

Mr. Brian Guthrie 
Executive Director 
Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
1000 Red River Street 
Austin, TX  78701 
 
Re: FY 2024 Rates for TRS-ActiveCare 

Dear Mr. Guthrie:  

This letter provides a summary of all TRS-ActiveCare proposed rates and plan design changes 
for Fiscal Year 2024.  The rates are included for 4 self-insured statewide benefit plans and 3 fully-
insured regional HMO plans currently offered to TRS-ActiveCare participants.   

During the 87th Regular Session (2021), the Texas Legislature enacted SB 1444 which changed 
the structure of TRS-ActiveCare to allow districts to leave the program for the first time.  Based 
on this legislation, rating methodology for the ActiveCare program was revised to develop regional 
rates for the 4 self-funded statewide benefit plans for the first time in Fiscal Year 2023.  We 
developed factors incorporating regional cost of care, group demographics, risk factors, and 
claims experience to apply to statewide rates based on the 20 existing Education Service Centers 
(ESCs) across the state.  The Fiscal Year 2024 rates are based on a consistent methodology with 
updates to claims experience and rating factors. 

Rates and plan design changes for the self-funded plans were developed internally in 
collaboration between Segal and TRS’ internal actuaries.  Renewal rates and plan design 
changes for the fully-insured HMOs were submitted by Scott & White Care Plans for the North 
Central Texas region and by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas for both the South Texas and West 
Texas regions.  Both HMO carriers are given the option to provide regional rates within their 
service areas.  Scott & White provided separate regional rates for their North Central HMO service 
area.  Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas provided one rate for their South Texas service area and 
one rate for their West Texas service area. 

The proposed monthly premiums and plan design changes are summarized below for the TRS-
ActiveCare Plans.  These premiums include funding from the State Legislature for FY2024, which 
reduces the overall premium need.  For the self-insured rates, we have provided the statewide 
average rates for each plan and regional factors to be applied to these average statewide rates.  
A complete listing of all proposed 2024 plan year monthly gross premium rates by region can be 
found in Exhibit A TO THE RESOLUTION APPROVING BENEFITS AND PREMIUM RATES 
FOR TRS-ACTIVECARE HD, TRS-ACTIVECARE PRIMARY+, TRS-ACTIVECARE PRIMARY, 



Mr. Brian Guthrie 
May 26, 2023 
Page 2 
 

   
 

AND TRS-ACTIVECARE 2. Note that each rate for the fully-insured HMO plans include a $15 
TRS monthly administrative fee. 

Self-Insured Statewide Plan Average Rates before applying regional factors 

Proposed Premium Rates: 

TRS-ActiveCare HD  FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   412.00 $   449.00      9.0% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,160.00 $1,213.00      4.6% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   741.00 $   765.00      3.2% 
   Employee and Family  $1,387.00 $1,525.00      9.9% 

TRS-ActiveCare Primary  FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   397.00 $   433.00      9.1% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,119.00 $1,160.00      3.7% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   715.00 $   736.00      2.9% 
   Employee and Family  $1,337.00 $1,463.00      9.4% 

TRS-ActiveCare Primary+ FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   497.00 $   502.00      1.0% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,222.00 $1,311.00      7.3% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   805.00 $   859.00      6.7% 
   Employee and Family  $1,535.00 $1,662.00      8.3% 

TRS-ActiveCare 2  FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $1.013.00 $1,013.00      0.0% 
   Employee and Spouse  $2,402.00 $2,402.00      0.0% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $1,507.00 $1,507.00      0.0% 
   Employee and Family  $2,841.00 $2,841.00      0.0% 
 
  



Mr. Brian Guthrie 
May 26, 2023 
Page 3 
 

   
 

Proposed Regional Factors to be applied to Average Statewide Rates: 

Educational Service Center            Relative Cost   Relative Cost             Change In 
   FY 2023       FY 2024         Regional Relativities 
     1 - Edinburg  -17%       -16%    +1%   
     2 - Corpus Christi     1%       -  1%   -2% 
     3 - Victoria     4%          3%   -1% 
     4 - Houston  -  1%          0%  +1% 
     5 - Beaumont     5%          4%   -1% 
     6 - Huntsville     1%       -  3%   -4% 
     7 - Kilgore     3%          2%   -1% 
     8 - Mount Pleasant     2%          3%  +1% 
     9 - Wichita Falls     4%          6%  +2% 
   10 - Richardson     3%          4%  +1% 
   11 - Fort Worth     5%          6%  +1% 
   12 - Waco   -  9%       -  8%  +1% 
   13 - Austin   -  9%       -  9%    0% 
   14 - Abilene  -  7%       -  9%   -2% 
   15 - San Angelo  -  5%       -  3%  +2% 
   16 - Amarillo  -  4%       -  7%   -3% 
   17 - Lubbock  -  8%       -  5%  +3% 
   18 - Midland  -14%       -20%   -6% 
   19 - El Paso  -  9%       -10%   -1% 
   20 - San Antonio  -13%       -13%    0% 
 
Proposed Benefit Changes: 
 
TRS-ActiveCare HD 

• Increase Individual In-Network maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $7,050 to $7,500; 

• Increase Family In-Network maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $14,100 to $15,000. 

TRS-ActiveCare Primary 

• Decrease Individual In-Network maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $8,150 to $7,500; 

• Decrease Family In-Network maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $16,300 to $15,000; 

• Decrease Telehealth Mental Health Copay from $70 to $0. 

TRS-ActiveCare Primary+ 

• Decrease Family Deductible from $3,600 to $2,400; 

• Decrease Primary Care Physician (PCP) copay from $30 to $15; 

• Decrease Mental Health Copay from $30 to $15; 

• Decrease Telehealth Mental Health Copay from $70 to $0. 

TRS-ActiveCare 2 

• Decrease Telehealth Mental Health Copay from $70 to $0. 
  



Mr. Brian Guthrie 
May 26, 2023 
Page 4 
 

   
 

Scott & White Care Plans HMO 

Proposed Premium Rates: 

North Central HMO 

Regions 4 and 6  FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   527.81 $   553.45     4.9% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,325.22 $1,390.74     4.9% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   848.31 $   889.98     4.9% 
   Employee and Family  $1,525.20 $1,600.72     5.0% 

Region 10   FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   543.35 $   569.76      4.9% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,364.92 $1,432.42      4.9% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   873.57 $   916.49      4.9% 
   Employee and Family  $1,570.98 $1,648.78      5.0% 

Region 11   FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   569.24 $   596.96      4.9% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,431.08 $1,501.90      4.9% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   915.65 $   960.68      4.9% 
   Employee and Family  $1,647.24 $1,728.86      5.0% 

Regions 12 and 13  FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   491.55 $   515.37      4.8% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,232.58 $1,293.46      4.9% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   789.39 $   828.11      4.9% 
   Employee and Family  $1,418.42 $1,488.60      4.9% 
 
Proposed Benefit Changes: 
 
North Central HMO 

• Increase Individual medical deductible from $1,900 to $2,400; 

• Increase Family medical deductible from $4,750 to $4,800; 

• Increase Individual maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $8,000 to $8,150; 

• Increase Family maximum out-of-pocket (MOOP) from $15,000 to $16,300; 

• Increase Medical Coinsurance from 20% to 25%; 

• Increase Primary Care Physician (PCP) copay from $15 to $20; 

• Increase Generic prescription drug copay (30/90 day) from  $12/$30 to $14/$35; 

• Increase Preferred Brand prescription drug coinsurance from 30% to 35%; 

• Increase Specialty prescription drug coinsurance from 25%/35% to 35%. 

 



Mr. Brian Guthrie 
May 26, 2023 
Page 5 
 

   
 

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas 

Proposed Premium Rates: 

South HMO   FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   614.64 $   777.14     26.4% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,484.16 $1,882.30     26.8% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $   961.22 $1,217.66     26.7% 
   Employee and Family  $1,579.76 $2,003.82     26.8% 

West HMO   FY 2023 FY 2024 %Change 
   Employee Only  $   689.60 $   865.00     25.4% 
   Employee and Spouse  $1,672.26 $2,103.16     25.8% 
   Employee and Child(ren) $1,083.58 $1,361.42     25.6% 
   Employee and Family  $1,775.58 $2,233.34     25.8% 
 
Proposed Benefit Changes: 
 
South HMO 

• No Changes. 
 
West HMO 

• No Changes. 
 
 
  



Mr. Brian Guthrie 
May 26, 2023 
Page 6 
 

   
 

SUMMARY 

The self-funded rates were initially developed to cover estimates of future costs and are based 
on unaudited information available to TRS and Segal Consulting at the time the rates were 
developed. Based on additional funding commitments from the legislature over the biennium, final 
rates have been reduced accordingly to meet the target fund balance at the end of this fiscal year. 
This will affect future rate increases without additional funding sources for future years.  While the 
legislature has approved the funding incorporated to establish the proposed rates, access to these 
funds is dependent on approval from the Governor.  If the Governor does not approve the funding 
as currently proposed by the legislature, self-insured rates necessary to cover estimates of future 
costs for Fiscal Year 2024 will change.  Projected rates are not a guarantee of future results. 
Actual experience may differ due to, but not limited to, such variables as changes in the regulatory 
environment, local market pressure, changes in group demographics, overall inflation rates and 
claims volatility. 

By signing below, I certify that I am a qualified actuary by education and experience to evaluate 
health rates. I am an Associate of the Society of Actuaries and a member of the American 
Academy of Actuaries and certify that all analysis was conducted in accordance with all applicable 
Actuarial Standards of Practice. 

The fully-insured rates provided by Scott & White Care Plans and Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas 
were reviewed for reasonableness with detailed analysis performed by TRS staff. We recommend 
acceptance of each of the renewals as proposed. 

Please let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information. 

Sincerely, 

 
Kirsten R. Schatten, ASA, FCA, MAAA 
Senior Vice President, Consulting Actuary 

 

 


	Tab 6 Health Division May Board Presentation (1).pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Agenda
	Slide 3: Working With Employers to Lower Health Care Costs  
	Slide 4: Bending the Health Care Cost Curve
	Slide 5: 2nd Year of Regional Rating:  Sustaining TRS-ActiveCare Scale & Advantage
	Slide 6: Regional Rating Methodology
	Slide 7: TRS-ActiveCare Receives Legislative Appropriation
	Slide 8: TRS-ActiveCare Receives Legislative Appropriation
	Slide 9: Regional Relativities by Education Service Center Region
	Slide 10: FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Gross Premiums (Before Employer Contribution)
	Slide 11: FY 24 TRS-ActiveCare Benefit Alignments
	Slide 12: TRS-ActiveCare: Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs)
	Slide 13: TRS-ActiveCare: Regional Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs)
	Slide 14: TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Benefits
	Slide 15: TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Premiums
	Slide 16: TRS-ActiveCare: Regional HMO Premiums
	Slide 17: Engagement & Support for Employers 
	Slide 18: Questions?




